
Workforce Panel  
 
Dear Member, 
 
You are invited to attend the meeting of the Workforce Panel to be held as follows for 
the transaction of the business indicated. 
David Wilcock 
Monitoring Officer 

 
DATE: Tuesday, 25 May 2021 
 
TIME:  11.30 am 
 
VENUE: Two New Bailey Square, New Bailey Street, Salford, M3 5EN 

 
In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 
this meeting.  

 
AGENDA 
 

 GUIDANCE FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ON THE RETURN 
TO FACE TO FACE COUNCIL MEETINGS FROM 7TH MAY 2021 
 
Please see the attached guidance document on the arrangements for 
the return to face to face meetings. This guidance includes 
information about the venue, the control measures in place, COVID-
19 lateral flow tests and travel options. 
 

(Pages 1 - 2) 

1   Apologies for Absence  
 

 

2   Declarations of Interest  
 

 

3   Minutes of the Meeting Held on 23rd February 2021  
 

(Pages 3 - 4) 

4   Senior Leadership Appointments  
 

(Pages 5 - 16) 

 
Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 3316 
Carol Eddleston E-Mail: carol.eddleston@salford.gov.uk 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



Committee Services, Governance and Legal.  13.05.21 

The return to face to face council meetings from 7th May 2021 
 
The temporary regulations enabling remote meetings expired on 7 May 2021 and the 
Government now requires that we hold meetings of the full council, Cabinet, 
committees, panels and boards (that are open to the public) have to be held in public 
so members of the public can attend in person. 
 
A tremendous effort has gone into trying to ensure that any council meetings taking 
place in person will be held in a COVID-19 secure environment.  Your safety is our 
upmost priority, whilst also supporting transparency, accountability and effective 
decision making. 

The venue for face to face meetings 
All the formal council meetings to the end of June will take place at Two New Bailey, 
New Bailey Street, Salford, as this is the most appropriate, suitably sized venue 
available to the city council, where meetings can take place in a COVID-secure way.  

COVID-secure face to face meetings 
Listed below are some of the control measures that we have had to put in place at the 
meetings to minimise the risk of the transmission of the virus.  It is very important that 
all persons attending the meetings comply with the following.   
 
1. Please arrive at least 20 minutes before the start of the meeting to allow for 

controlled access to the building and meeting space. 
2. A marshal will be onsite to greet you and will escort you to the meeting. 
3. The meeting will be run in line with Government guidance, and using the principle 

of ‘hands, face and space’. Therefore, you are asked to regularly wash and sanitise 
your hands, wear a face covering at all times unless you hold a medical exemption, 
and please maintain a two metre distance from others at all times whilst in the 
building. 

4. Movement around the meeting spaces will be kept to an absolute minimum with 
pre-defined entrances and exits (the marshal onsite will cover this in more detail 
with you when you arrive). 

5. A vital element of our COVID-secure plans is that everyone attending should 
complete a COVID-19 lateral flow home tests three days before the meeting 
and on the morning of the meeting:  

 

• You can collect or order the home testing kits by: 
o Ordering a box of test kits to be delivered to your home 
o Collecting a box of test kits from a local collection point 

 

• If you test positive before or on the day you were meant to attend the meeting  
under no circumstances should you attend, please email your apologies to 
Democratic Services of your decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk 
 

• If your lateral flow test is positive you will then need to book a complementary 
PCR Test and follow national guidance on self-isolating.   

 
6. Despite all the COVID-secure measures we have put in place there remains a 

residual risk and coronavirus can make anyone seriously ill. For some of you the 
risk is higher, particularly if… 

• you are clinically extremely vulnerable or if they are at significant risk 

Page 1

Agenda Annex

https://www.gov.uk/order-coronavirus-rapid-lateral-flow-tests
https://www.salford.gov.uk/people-communities-and-local-information/coronavirus/how-to-get-tested/book-a-free-rapid-coronavirus-test/
mailto:decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk
https://www.gov.uk/get-coronavirus-test
https://www.gov.uk/get-coronavirus-test


Committee Services, Governance and Legal.  13.05.21 

• you have one or more health conditions as a number of risk factors may interact 

as well as health conditions. 

 

You may wish to take medical advice about your particular circumstances, if either 

of the above applies to you before you make a decision about attending face to 

face meetings.   

Travelling to Two New Bailey 

• By bike: 

A cycle store available on ground floor and security will provide access when 

required. 

• By train: 

Salford Central Station is a couple of minutes’ walk from the building.  

• By bus: 

There are many buses that stop on New Bailey Street and Bridge Street and this 

includes the following bus services – 34, 34a, 36, 37, 38, and 67. 

• By tram: 

The Metrolink from Eccles stops at St Peter’s Square and the building is a 10 to 15 

minutes’ walk from the tram stop. 

• By car 

Car parking is available at: 

New Bailey MSCP 

Irwell Street,  

Salford M3 5EN (For your Sat Nav use M3 5AY Depending on when your Sat Nav 

was last updated it may not recognise the full postcode so you would be advised 

to use the directions facility on the Google Maps app) 

This car park is next to the building and has accessible parking. 
 

 

Page 2

https://tfgm.com/public-transport/train
https://tfgm.com/public-transport/bus
https://tfgm.com/public-transport/bus
https://www.ncp.co.uk/find-a-car-park/car-parks/salford-new-bailey/


Workforce Panel Meeting Held on 23rd February 2021 via MS Teams 

Live 

Meeting started at 11:30am 

Meeting ended at 11:53am 

 

Present 
Councillors Hinds (in the chair), August, Bentham, Boshell, Kelly and Reynolds. 

 

Officers 
Sam Betts (HR & OD), Carol Eddleston (Democratic Services) and Tom Stannard (Chief Executive) 

 

1. Apologies for Absence 
Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of City Mayor Paul Dennett and Councillors 

Lancaster and Merry. 

2. Declarations of Interest 
There were no declarations of interest. 

3. Minutes of Proceedings 
The minutes of the meeting held on 26th January were approved as a correct record. 

4. Pay Policy Statement 2021/22 
The Lead Member for Finance and Support Services introduced the report which he believed 

evidenced Salford City Council’s endeavours to be a good employer which tried to take care of its 

staff, without whom the council’s services could not be provided. Salford had been the first local 

authority in Greater Manchester to become an accredited Living Wage employer and was committed 

to encouraging more organisations and companies to pay the real Living Wage.  

The Assistant Director HR & OD presented the Pay Policy Statement in more detail, explaining that it 

set out the council’s approach to pay policy in accordance with the Localism Act 2011 and due 

regard to the associated Statutory Guidance 2013 and the Local Government Transparency Code. 

In line with the Equality Act 2010 (specific duties and public authorities’ regulations 2017) Salford City 

Council was also required to publish details of its gender pay gap. The Council had seen a reduction of 

3.2% in the mean gender pay gap and 5% in the median gender pay gap since reporting began in 2018. 

 

The gender pay was affected by the composition of the workforce and the City Council had a high 

proportion of females within the lowest quartile of our pay distribution, with many occupying lower 

paid, part time and term time positions in catering and cleaning, service areas which the council  was 

very proud to retain in house. If catering and cleaning roles were excluded from the calculations, the 

gender pay gap reduced by 6.6. 

 

An equal pay audit was carried out annually comparing the pay of protected groups who were doing 

equal work in the authority, investigating the causes of any pay gaps by gender, ethnicity, disability, 

age, or working pattern and putting in place plans to close any gaps that could be justified on 

grounds other than one of those characteristics. No statistically significant pay gaps had been 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



identified for any of the protected groups. The council was committed to improving the levels of 

equalities data held and regularly encouraged staff to update their data. The position in relation to 

equal pay would be monitored and reported on an annual basis. 

Members of the panel commended the report and thanked the HR & OD team for all their hard work 

throughout the year. They were proud of the significant progress made in addressing the gender pay 

gap and in encouraging partners and other organisations across the city to follow the council’s 

example in relation to pay and workforce strategy. 

The Chief Executive confirmed that he and the senior management team saw the pay policy 

statement as a work in progress which was on a positive trajectory. 

RESOLVED, THAT: 

1. The gender pay gap information be noted, including publication requirements, and 

2. the Draft Pay Policy Statement 2021/22 be presented to Council for approval at its meeting on 17 

March 2021.  

 

Page 4



 1 

 
Part 1: Open to the Public  
 

 

REPORT OF ASSISTANT DIRECTOR HUMAN RESOURCES & 
ORGANISATIONAL DEVELOPMENT 

 

TO WORKFORCE PANEL 

ON 25TH MAY 2021

 

TITLE: SENIOR LEADERSHIP APPOINTMENTS 
 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 

1. That the Workforce Panel agrees the membership of the Appointment 
Panel(s) for the posts of Strategic Director Place and City Solicitor (Monitoring 
Officer). 
 

2. That the Appointment Panel(s) be delegated to agree the final details of the 
recruitment and selection arrangements as follows: - 
(a) Agree the role profiles. 
(b) Agree an external recruitment approach. 
(c) Agree the detail of the selection process. 
(d) Agree the use of external executive search and support for the process. 
(e) Appoint a suitable candidate and notify Cabinet Members allowing any 
objections to the offer to the City Mayor. 

 

3. Following the selection of a suitable candidate for the City Solicitor (Monitoring 

Officer) post the Appointment Panel will make a recommendation to approve 

their appointment to full Council. 

 
4. That the Workforce Panel agrees to recommend to full Council the proposals 

relating to the remuneration of the Chief Officer posts referred to in this report. 
 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
This report sets out the proposed arrangements and process in relation to the 
recruitment, selection and appointment to the vacant posts of Strategic Director 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



 2 

Place and the City Solicitor a post which also carries the statutory role of Monitoring 
Officer.  
 

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: 

 

KEY DECISION: NO 

 

DETAILS: 
 
1. Introduction  

 

This report sets out the arrangements for the recruitment, selection and appointment 

to the vacant posts of Strategic Director Place and the City Solicitor a post which also 

carries the statutory role of Monitoring Officer. 

 

The Strategic Director for Place carries the leadership responsibility and 
accountability across a range of services and disciplines including operational 
services such as streetscene and parks, VMS and Citywide together with regulatory 
functions such as health and safety and environmental health. With responsibility for 
community safety and emergency planning as well as leading on city wide 
regeneration, development, and investment.  This directorate plays a key role for 
housing, planning and environmental policy plus infrastructure, construction, 
engineering, streetworks, planning and building control and the contract management 
for Salford Community Leisure. 
   
The City Solicitor post was established in 2015 in line with recommendations from 
the Audit and Accounts Committee to ensure that lawful decision making, and 
governance arrangements are in place.   
 
The City Solicitor is also the statutory Monitoring Officer for the Council.  The 
Monitoring Officer is a statutory appointment under the provisions of Section 5 of the 
Local Government and Housing Act 1989. 
 
In addition to the statutory Monitoring Officer responsibilities and chief legal adviser 
role, the post holder is responsible for a range of services within the legal and 
governance division which will include democratic services (including elections), 
Coroners, Registrars and client management for the shared legal service with 
Manchester City Council. 
 
2. Recruitment Arrangements 

 

2.1 Appointment Panel – Strategic Director Place 

Page 6



 3 

It is one of the responsibilities of the Workforce Panel to establish a Committee or 
Sub-Committee to act as the appointment panel for the recruitment and appointment 
to external posts at this level.   

In respect of this post, it is suggested that the Panel be convened from the 
membership of the Workforce Panel as follows: - 

• City Mayor 
• Deputy City Mayor (Portfolio lead for Housing, Property and Regeneration) 
• Executive Support Member for Workforce and Industrial Relations 

• Lead Member for Environment, Neighbourhoods and Community Safety  
• Lead Member for Planning and Sustainable Development 
• Leader of the Opposition or nominated representative 

The Panel will be advised by the Chief Executive and the Assistant Director for HR & 
OD. 

The Appointment Panel will have delegated responsibility to agree the final details of 
the recruitment and selection arrangements as follows: - 

(a) Agree the role profile. 
(b) Agree an external recruitment approach. 
(c) Agree the detail of the selection process. 
(d) Agree the use of external executive search and selection support for the 
process. 
(e) Appoint a suitable candidate and notify Cabinet Members allowing any 
objections to the offer to the City Mayor. 
 

It is proposed that this post is advertised on an external basis in the MJ and the 
greater.jobs website with external support for the executive search and selection 
process. 
 
2.2 Appointment Panel – City Solicitor 

It is one of the responsibilities of the Workforce Panel to establish a Committee or 
Sub-Committee to act as the appointment panel for the recruitment and appointment 
to external posts at this level.   

In respect of this post, it is suggested that the Panel be convened from the 

membership of the Workforce Panel as follows: - 

 City Mayor 

 Lead Member for Finance and Support Services 

 Executive Support Member for Workforce and Industrial Relations 

 Leader of the Opposition or nominated representative 

 

The Panel will be advised by the Chief Executive, the Strategic Director for Service 

Reform, the Assistant Director for HR & OD, and a senior legal adviser. 

 

The Appointment Panel will have delegated responsibility to agree the final details of 

the recruitment and selection arrangements as follows: 

Page 7



 4 

(a) Agree the role profile and job requirements. 

(b) Agree an external recruitment approach. 

(c) Agree the detail of the selection process. 

(d) Agree the use of external search and support for the process. 

(e) Select a suitable candidate and make a recommendation to approve their 

appointment to full Council. 

 

It is proposed that this post is advertised on an external basis in the MJ and the 

greater.jobs website with external support for the executive search process. 

 
3. Statutory Roles 

 
In addition to the Head of Paid Service, a role that is undertaken by the Chief 
Executive, local authorities are required by statute to employ officers in certain key 
roles including the Monitoring Officer and the Chief Finance Officer, also referred to 
as the Section 151 Officer. 
 
3.1 The Monitoring Officer 
 
The Monitoring Officer is a statutory appointment under Section 5 of the Local 
Government and Housing Act 1989 as amended by paragraph 24 of schedule 5 of the 
Local Government Act 2000.  The current responsibilities of the Monitoring Officer role 
rest with the City Solicitor who must undertake to discharge his/her statutory 
responsibilities with a positive determination and in a manner that enhances the overall 
reputation of the Council. In doing so s/he will also safeguard, so far as is possible, 
Members and Officers whilst acting in their official capacities, from legal difficulties 
and/or criminal sanctions. 
 
The main functions of the Monitoring Officer are: - 

 To report any case where s/he is of the opinion that any proposal or decision of 
the authority has given rise to or is likely to or would give rise to any illegality, 
maladministration or breach of statutory code under Sections 5 and 5A of the 
Local Government and Housing Act 1989; (LGHA 89) 

 To investigate any matter which s/he has reason to believe may constitute, or 
where s/he has received an allegation that a matter may constitute, a reportable 
incident under Sections 5 and 5A of the LGHA 89. 

 Ensure lawfulness and fairness of decision making. 

 To act as the Proper Officer for the preparation, publication, and retention of 
records of decisions taken by or on behalf of the Council and the Executive. 

 To act as the principal adviser to the authority's Standards Committee. 

 To act as the principal adviser to the authority's Independent Member(s). 

 To maintain the register of Members' interests. 

 To have responsibility for responding to complaints to the Local Government 
and Social Care Ombudsman. 

 To undertake, with others, investigations in accordance with the Council's 
Whistleblowing procedures. 

 
 

Page 8



 5 

In line with normal practice when a role becomes vacant a review of the role has been 
undertaken and the full details of the roles and responsibilities for the post together 
with the main statutory references for the Monitoring Officer's functions have been set 
out in the revised draft role profile. 
 
3.2 The Section 151 Officer 
 
Section 151 Officer – Statutory Responsibilities 
 
The Chief Financial Officer is the Council's Section 151 Officer and undertakes to 
discharge his/her statutory responsibilities with a positive determination and in a 
manner that enhances the overall reputation of the Council.  The over-riding duty of 
the Chief Financial Officer is to fulfil the statutory responsibilities attached to the 
position. These statutory duties derive from 6 principle sources as set out below. 
 

 Statutory Definition - the statutory definition of the Treasurer was developed by 
case law in Attorney General -v- De Winton 1906. It was established that the 
Treasurer is not merely a servant of the authority but holds a fiduciary 
relationship to the local taxpayers. 
 

 Responsible Financial Officer - Section 151 of the Local Government Act 
1972 requires every authority in England and Wales to "... make arrangements 
for the proper administration of their financial affairs and shall secure that one 
of their Officers has responsibility for the administration of those affairs". Legal 
opinion taken states that the term "administration" in the statutes means 
responsibility for managing the totality of the financial affairs of a local authority 
in all of its dealings. 
 
The Officer appointed as the responsible financial Officer must by virtue 
of section 113 of the Local Government Finance Act 1988 be a Member of a 
specified accountancy body. The statutory role must be performed by an 
"Officer" of the authority. 

 

 Unlawful Expenditure and an Unbalanced Budget - the Chief Financial Officer's 
duties are significantly extended by section 114 of the 1988 Act which requires 
a report to all Members to be made by that Officer in consultation with the 
Monitoring Officer and Head of Paid Service if there is, or is likely to be, unlawful 
expenditure or an unbalanced budget. Section 114 also requires the authority 
to provide its Chief Financial Officer with such staff, accommodation and other 
resources as are in their opinion sufficient to allow their duties under that section 
to be performed.  
 

 Local Government Act 2000 - the Chief Financial Officer and the Monitoring 
Officer have a role in advising whether particular decisions are likely to be 
contrary to the policy framework or budget of the authority. The authority will 
need to ensure that the Chief Financial Officer and the Monitoring Officer have 
access as necessary to meetings and papers and that Members must consult 
with him/her regularly. The model Code of Conduct for Members requires 
Members to have regard to advice provided by the Chief Financial Officer in any 

Page 9



 6 

formal report that s/he submits under section 114 of the Local Government 
Finance Act 1988. 
 

 Accounts and Audit Regulations - the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003 
emphasise the need for effective financial management and sound systems of 
internal control. They require that the Council should maintain an adequate and 
effective system of internal audit for their accounting records and control 
systems. It is a function of the Chief Financial Officer to direct Internal Audit and 
ensure that it is adequate for the authority's purposes. 

 

 Local Government Act 2003 - the Chief Financial Officer is required to: 
o Report to the authority at the time that the budget is considered and the 

Council Tax set on both the robustness of the budget estimates and the 
adequacy of financial reserves. 

o Ensure that the guidelines and ratios set down for the purposes of 
Prudential Capital regime are adhered to once fixed and report to Council 
if they are going to be infringed. 

 
Any review and changes to one of the statutory roles would in relative terms impact on 
the other statutory post and therefore automatically prompt a review of the role of Chief 
Finance Officer.  Since 2017, when the role was established in its current form, it has 
been operating in practice as the Chief Finance Officer with the statutory 
responsibilities as the Section 151 and not solely the Assistant Director for Finance.  
Therefore, to ensure roles, responsibilities and level of accountability reflect the current 
operation of the role and in line with normal practice a review of this role has also been 
undertaken.  The full details of the roles and responsibilities for the post together with 
the main statutory references for the Chief Finance Officer functions are set out in the 
revised role profile. 
 
4. Job Evaluation  

 
As detailed in the Pay Policy Statement the council uses the chief officer job 
evaluation scheme developed by the Local Government Employers. This scheme 
applies to all senior posts paid on locally determined salary points from spinal column 
point 53 and above, incorporating all chief officer posts.  This provides assurance that 
all pay differentials can be objectively justified through the use of job evaluation 
mechanisms which directly establish the relative levels of posts and grades according 
to the requirements, demands and responsibilities of the role.  
 
The posts within the council falling within the definition of ‘chief officers’ are those at 
second tier which is Assistant Director and above and constitutes the council’s Senior 
Leadership Team.   
 
The Strategic Director for Place carries the leadership responsibility and 
accountability across a range of services and disciplines including operational 
services such as streetscene and parks, VMS and Citywide together with regulatory 
functions such as health and safety and environmental health. With responsibility for 
community safety and emergency planning as well as leading on city wide 
regeneration, development, and investment.  This directorate plays a key role for 
housing, planning and environmental policy plus infrastructure, construction, 

Page 10



 7 

engineering, streetworks, planning and building control and the contract management 
for Salford Community Leisure. 
 
The post has been evaluated under the job evaluation scheme for Local Government 
Chief Officers and Senior Managers and sized, scored and ranked accordingly.  The 
salary scale, as determined by the outcome of this exercise, is £110,087 to £126,238 
per annum in line with Band A of the agreed senior pay structure. 
 
The appointment will be in accordance with the JNC for Chief Officer terms and 
conditions. 
 
The City Solicitor post has been evaluated under the job evaluation scheme for Local 
Government Chief Officers and Senior Managers and sized, scored and ranked 
accordingly.  The salary scale, as determined by the outcome of this exercise, is 
£92,475 to £107,888 per annum in line with Band C of the agreed senior pay 
structure. 
 
The appointment will be in accordance with the JNC for Chief Officer terms and 
conditions. 
 
The Chief Finance Officer post has been evaluated under the job evaluation scheme 
for Local Government Chief Officers and Senior Managers and sized, scored and 
ranked accordingly.  The salary scale, as determined by the outcome of this exercise, 
is £92,475 to £107,888 per annum in line with Band C of the agreed senior pay 
structure. 
 
In line with the Council Constitution, the Council makes determinations in relation to 
the remuneration of posts whose remuneration is, or would become, £100,000 per 
annum or above.  As the salary ranges exceed £100,000 Council must therefore be 
offered the opportunity to consider the salaries before the salary package is offered 
in respect of a new appointment.  Therefore, a separate report on this matter will go 
to Council in July 2021. 
 

5. Vision, values, and leading Salford 
 
The City Mayor has set out his vision for a ‘fairer, greener and healthier Salford for 
all’ and whatever their role our people are all here to make that vision a reality. This 
vision gives our people direction and a shared sense of purpose. 
 
The City Mayor has set out his priorities for achieving a fairer, greener, and healthier 
Salford ‘the Great 8’ which are: 
 
Tackling poverty and inequality: 

 Ensuring poverty prevention and reduction is at the heart of everything we do 
in the city. 

 Support people currently experiencing poverty through continuation of 
personalised care to the most vulnerable residents. 

 Work to reduce inequalities wherever they exist. 
 
 

Page 11



 8 

Tackling health inequalities and providing the best possible care: 
 Work to become a Marmot City. 
 Ensuring access to mental health care and support. 
 Ensuring children and young people are safe and have the best possible start 

in life. 
 Strengthening our unified model of health and care, including a valued care 

workforce. 
 

Affordable housing and reducing homelessness: 
 Continue efforts to reduce homelessness and rough sleeping. 
 Strengthen our commitment to provide decent and affordable social housing 

including through the council’s own ethical housing company Dérive. 
 
Promoting transport and digital connectivity: 

 Support the development of the cycling and walking network across the city. 
 Lobby for further investment in a connected public transport system, including 

extension of the GM Metro-link and GM bus franchising. 
 Invest in our digital infrastructure and skills to ensure no resident or business 

in the city is digitally excluded. 
 
Skills and education (A Learning City): 

 Develop skills pipelines and a connected education system to link people to 
new job opportunities in productive growth sectors in the city. 

 Supporting young people to continue with their education in high quality and 
safe settings. 

 Support the transition of young people and recently unemployed into decent 
and sustainable jobs, focusing on growth sectors in the Salford and GM 
economy. 

 Support business development and innovation for the creation of new jobs and 
employment opportunities. 

 
Creating an economy for all: 
 Maintain confidence to invest and develop in the city, focussed on our 

strategic opportunities and sectors, and provide foundations for inclusive 
economic growth. 

 Maximise the social value and impact from our role as an anchor institution, 
including by prioritising local suppliers and local supply chains wherever 
possible, and committing to a strengthened Salford Social Value Alliance and 
10% Better Campaign. 

 Supporting the development of alternative economic models and community 
wealth building to support residents to benefit from the local economy 

 Lobby for a fair funding settlement for Salford to guarantee effective public 
services. 

 
Tackling the climate emergency: 
 Secure investment and development in green spaces and green infrastructure 

across the city, including electric vehicle charging points, affordable energy 
 Encourage active travel and improvements in air quality. 
 Invest in green skills and green economic sectors to strengthen the city’s 

future economic resilience. 

Page 12



 9 

Creating vibrant places and spaces: 
 Deliver commitments within the city’s new Culture Strategy, including creation 

of a Salford Heritage Commission to support the city’s vibrant cultural assets 
 Ensure local access to, and benefit from, the city’s world class cultural assets 

such as the Lowry and RHS Bridgewater. 
 Build on the city’s strong voluntary, community and social enterprise sector to 

build resilient community support and ensure Salford is a supportive and safe 
place. 

 Create and support vibrant neighbourhood centres at the heart of their local 
community. 

 
To achieve this vision and deliver the priorities we have a strong set of values - pride, 
passion, people, and personal responsibility which capture the spirit and ambition of 
the city and inform the way we operate.  The values influence our choices, 
behaviours and how we make decisions and deliver services. Living the values day in 
and day out creates a supportive environment which allows all our people to thrive 
and contribute to achieving our vision.  The Spirit of Salford represents our culture, 
our social conscience and pride – our organisation is about people and the 
communities that we serve. We are renowned for our resilience and coping positively 
with change, we make the most of opportunities. 
 
The #LeadingSalford leadership framework has been developed with clear 
expectations of leaders and managers in Salford. This framework is intended to 
address the issue of clarity of expectations in terms of how leaders and managers 
operate and their behaviours. It is underpinned by a consistent approach to 
leadership development and has been designed to enable everybody to understand 
what it means to be a leader in Salford.  
 
Effective leaders and managers are critical to the delivery of excellent services, 
partnership working, our commitment to engagement and co-production and 
innovation in local government.  Therefore, investment in our leaders and developing 
their skills is essential.   
 
The framework is based on values-based leadership and describes the behaviour 
required for leadership of self, others, outcomes, and the way forward. There are four 
main components to the framework - leadership behaviours, management skills, 
development activities and our values. The values-based leadership element is at the 
heart of the framework to ensure that all our leadership expectations are grounded in 
modelling and embedding the values in the way managers and their teams work. 
Effective leaders are values driven and trustworthy, their behaviour is consistent and 
ethical, and they follow through and deliver on commitments.  
 
The #LeadingSalford leadership framework and expected behaviours are now the 
cornerstone by which all leadership roles are designed and how we recruit and select 
our leaders. 
 

 

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:  
 

Page 13



 10 

 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: 
 
The recruitment, selection and appointment process will be undertaken in a lawful, 
fair, transparent, and consistent manner in line with our recruitment and selection and 
equal opportunities policies, commitments, and frameworks. Applications are 
welcome from all sections of the community irrespective of race, gender, gender 
reassignment, age, disability, sexuality, religion, or belief. 
 

 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  
 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:  
Mary Sutton, Legal Services  

 

The Officer Employment Procedure Rules set out the procedure for the appointment 
of Chief Officers and Statutory Officers including the Monitoring Officer.  The 
Constitution is underpinned by legislation and statutory guidance under section 40 of 
the Localism Act 2011, which is designed to ensure openness and accountability in 
local pay.   
 
Workforce Panel can be satisfied that the proposals contained in this report are lawful 
and that the recruitment proposals concerning the City Solicitor and the Strategic 
Director for Place are in line with Council’s constitution. 
 
Once the recruitment has been concluded, the appointment of the Monitoring Officer 
will be subject to the approval of full Council.  The Annex 1 procedure, whereby the 
Assistant Director of HROD writes to each Member of the Cabinet in order to give 
them the right to object to the appointment before it takes effect, will also apply to the 
appointment to both posts. 
 
The full Council must be given the opportunity to approve salary packages at or 
above £100,000 and the recommendations for the salary of the Chief Officer posts 
within this report will be referred to full Council. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: 

Chris Hesketh, Head of Financial Management 

 
The costs of these posts, including the two statutory positions, will be managed from 
within the existing service budgets.  Therefore, there are no additional financial 
resource requirements arising from the report. 

Page 14



 11 

 

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A 
 

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: 
Are contained within the body of the report. 

 
 

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: 
 

 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: 
 

 

CONTACT OFFICER: Samantha Betts Assistant Director HR & OD 

E-mail: Samantha.betts@salford.gov.uk  
 

 

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: 
 

Page 15

mailto:Samantha.betts@salford.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	 GUIDANCE FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ON THE RETURN TO FACE TO FACE COUNCIL MEETINGS FROM 7TH MAY 2021
	3 Minutes of the Meeting Held on 23rd February 2021
	4 Senior Leadership Appointments

